














Februarv 18, 2025

A meeting of the City Council of the City of Falls City, Nebraska, was held in said City on the 18th day of February 2025,
at 6:04 o’ clock PM. Council met in regular session. Mayor Harkendorff called the meeting to order and Clerk
Nussbaum recorded the minutes of the meeting. On roll call the following Council persons were present:
Buckminster, Ferguson, Fouraker, Kaster, E. Killingsworth, K. Killingsworth, Leyden, Ruiz. Absent; None, Notice of the
meeting was given in advance thereof by posting in three public places, a designated method for giving notice as
shown by the Certificate of Posting Notice attached to these minutes. Notice of this meeting was given to the mayor
and all persons of the Council and a copy of their acknowledgment of receipt of notice and the agenda is attached to
the minutes. Availability of the agenda was communicated in the advance notice and in the notice to the Mayor and
Council of this meeting. All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the
attendance of the public. Mayor Harkendorff publicly stated to all in attendance that a current copy of the Nebraska
Open Meetings Act was available for review and indicated the location of such copy posted in the room where the
meeting was being held.

AGENDA APPROVAL FOR FEBRUARY 18, 2025

A motion was made by Council person Leyden and seconded by Council person F. Killingsworth to approve the agenda
for February 18, 2025, as presented. Roll was called on this motion and the Council persons voted as follows: "YEA”
Buckminster, Ferguson, Fouraker, Kaster, E Killingsworth, K. Killingsworth, Leyden, Ruiz. "NAY" None. "ABSENT”
None, Motion carried.

MINUTES APPROVAL FOR FEBRUARY 3, 2025

A motion was made by Council person Leyden and seconded by Council person Ferguson to approve the minutes for
February 3, 2025, as presented. Roll was called on this motion and the Council persons voted as follows: "YEA"
Buckminster, Ferguson, Fouraker, Kaster, E Killingsworth, K. Killingsworth, Leyden, Ruiz. "NAY" None. "ABSENT”
None. Motion carried.

CLAIMS APPROVAL FOR FEBRUARY 19, 2025

A motion was made by Council person Ferguson and seconded by Council person Leyden to approve the claims as
presented. Roll was called on this motion and the Council persons voted as follows: "YEA" Buckminster, Ferguson,
Fouraker, Kaster, F. Killingsworth, K. Killingsworth, Leyden, Ruiz. "NAY" None. "ABSENT” None. Motion carried.

TREASURER’S REPORT FOR JANUARY 2025

A motion was made by Council member Leyden and seconded by Council person F. Killingsworth to approve the
Treasurer’s Report for January 2025 as presented. Roll was called on this motion and the Council persons voted as
follows: "YEA” Buckminster, Ferguson, Fouraker, Kaster, F. Killingsworth, K. Killingsworth, Leyden, Ruiz. "NAY" None.,
"ABSENT” None. Motion carried.

ANNUAL COMMITMENT TO BLUE RIVERS AREA AGENCY ON AGING

A motion was made by Council member Ferguson and seconded by Council person Fouraker to approve the Annual
Commitment to Blue Rivers Area Agency on Aging as presented. Roll was called on this motion and the Council
persons voted as follows: "YEA” Buckminster, Ferguson, Fouraker, Kaster, F. Killingsworth, K. Killingsworth, Leyden,
Ruiz. "NAY" None. "ABSENT” None. Motion carried.

ADDITION OF SWIM LESSONS TO THE FALLS CITY AQUATIC CENTER AS RECOMMENDED BY THE BOARD QF
PARK COMMISSIONERS|BRIAR BURR - PARKS AND RECREATION DIRECTOR

A motion was made by Council member F. Killingsworth and seconded by Council member K. Killingsworth to
approve the Addition of Swim Lessons as presented. Roll was called on this motion and the Council persons voted as
follows: "YEA” Buckminster, Ferguson, Fouraker, Kaster, F. Killingsworth, K. Killingsworth, Leyden, Ruiz. "NAY" None.
"ABSENT” None. Motion carried.



REVIEW OF THE REVISED PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

City Administrator Nussbaum presented a draft version of the purchasing policy. A motion was made by Council
member Leyden and seconded by Council member K. Killingsworth to table the item to the regular meeting on March
3, 2025, after the audit presentation. Roll was called on this motion and the Council persons voted as follows: "YEA”
Buckminster, Ferguson, Fouraker, Kaster, F Killingsworth, K. Killingsworth, Leyden, Ruiz. "NAY" None. "ABSENT”
None. Motion carried.

DISCUSSION REGARDING CODES, FISCAL MANAGEMENT, AND CLAIMS PROCESSING|SHAWN FOURAKER -

COUNCILPERSON

A motion was made by Council member K. Killingsworth to move into closed session to discuss Codes, Fiscal
Management, and Claims Processing and died for a lack of a second. City Attorney Dunn presented guidance on topics
and reasons in which closed sessions are allowed in accordance with the Nebraska Open Meetings Act. Council person
Fouraker stated he would like for the city council to review code sections in the future. No action was taken on the
item.

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS, THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 6:50pm

I, the undersigned, City Clerk for the City of Falls City, Nebraska, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct
copy of proceedings had and done by Mayor Harkendorff and Council on February 18, 2025; that all of the subjects
included in the foregoing proceedings were contained in the agenda for the meeting, kept continually current and
available for public inspection at the office of the City Clerk; that such agenda items were sufficiently descriptive to
give the public reasonable notice of the matters to be considered at the meeting; that such subjects were contained in
said agenda for at least twenty-four hours prior to said meeting; that at least one copy of all reproducible material
discussed at the meeting was available at the meeting for examination and copying by persons of the public; that the
said minutes from which the foregoing proceedings have been extracted were in written form and available for public
inspection within ten working days and prior to the next convened meeting of said body; that all news media
requesting notification concerning meetings of said body were provided advance notification of the time and place of
said meeting and the subjects to be discussed at said meeting; and that a current copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings
Act was available and accessible to persons of the public, posted during such meeting in the room in which such
meeting was held.

(SEAL)

CITY CLERK

CITY CLERK MAYOR






Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

Amazon Capital Services
Verizon

Farm & City Supply

Meyer Home Center

League Association of Risk Ma
Farm & City Supply
Bosselman Pump & Pantry Inc
Falls City Sanitation Service
Amazon Capital Services
Amazon Capital Services
Amazon Capital Services
Kawres

Kawres

Kawres

Kawres

Falis City Auto Supply

Mark Harkendorff

Fund: 151 - Auditorim
Falis City Journal

Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Unifirst Corportation
HILLYARD/KANSAS CITY
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Amazon Capital Services
Amazon Capitat Services
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Suppiy
Farm & City Supply
Falis City Mercantile
Falis City Mercantile
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Falls City Mercantile
Falls City Mercantile
Pest Control Services of SE NE
Falls City Sanitation Service
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply

Payable Number

17nw-cxjk-jle6
06104613018
014630
150177
112480
014984
INV06437
INV06443
1pcl-h3q1-9jy6
1pcl-h3q1-9jy6
1pcl-h3q1-9jy6
22160

22160

22160

22160

75155
02-2025-000284

INV0O6444
014316
014316
014368
014386
014386
014386
014386
014386
014386
014386
014386
014386
014397
1910076545
605719552
014542
014542
014542
1mgi-wmbl-gdgg
1mgi-wmbl-gdgg
014711
014711
014711
014711
014711
014711
014740
014796
236101
236101
015022
015022
236247
236247
14966
INV06443
015275
015275
015275
015275

Post Date

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
02/14/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

Description (item)

first aid kit

service

foild sawhorse 1000ib 2pk
service-mini splits

insurance

socket set steel 43pcs

fuel

service

biue pickieballs

dog waste refifi bags

first aid clean up

black ink

yelfow ink

magenta ink

cyan ink

3 1/2 ton low profite floor jac
Rental AddOn Payment for Ca

ads

tapper hit 5/32"x4-1/2"

red grnt hmr bit 5/32x6"
duplex receptacle

Pipe Black TBE 3/4"x36' ltem
Pipe Black The 3/4"x48" Ite
Elange Black FL3/4" ltemit41
Eibow 45 Black 3/4" Hemit4l
Screw ttem#5S

Grade 5 Bolts, Nuts, Washers
Laddr 8'STP FBRGLS250HWER
Compact Tape Measure 30' |
Screws ltemH55

efbow st 45 deg black 3/4
supplies

supplies

blade utitity knife 5 pk

trash can

utility scraper retrac

spill kit

led emergency light for office
grade 5 bolts nuts washers
Hook & eye 2-1/2" znc cd2
spring door #4 w/hks zn
hinge t hd 4" palv

cm socket 11pc 1/4 dr sae
cm sacket 11pc 1/4dr mm
door hald kick-dwn 4" crm
electrical tape 3/4"x66'
aeroso! kit mixed frag
aerosol dispenser

SCTEWS

holder tool garage 36"

Merit Hardwound Brown Tow
Merit Jumbo Toilet Tissue 2-pl
service-aud

service

EMT Conduit 1/2"x10" Itemit
Elect Oct Bx 1-1/2 Deep ltem
Fastback Utility Knf6in 1 lte
1/2" 90D EMT Elbow ltem#3

Account Numbaer Amount
150-05-51-52429 38.88
150-05-51-52011 85,88
150-05-51-52429 54,99
150-05-51-52093 85.00
150-05-51-52160 242,17
150-05-51-52429 58.99
150-05-51-52014 692.04
150-05-51-52085 130.00
150-05-51-52429 14,98
150-05-51-52429 45.49
150-05-51-52429 29.19
150-05-51-52429 52.50
150-05-51-52429 35.25
150-05-51-52429 35.25
150-05-51-52429 35.25
150-05-51-52420 299.00
150-05-51-21600 50.00

Fund 150 - Parks Total: 2,577.92
151-05-51-52147 28.42
151-05-51-52093 7.59
151-05-51-52053 7.59
151-05-51-52093 3.59
151-05-51-52093 19.99
151-05-51-52093 23.99
151-05-51-52053 19.18
151-05-51-52093 6.59
151-05-51-52093 4.50
151-05-51-52093 0.32
151-05-51-52093 154.99
151-05-51-52093 24.99
151-05-51-52093 3.30
151-05-51-52093 B.59
151-05-51-52429 66,55
151-05-51-52429 151.22
151-05-51-52429 2,59
151-05-51-52429 79.98
151-05-51-52429 4.59
151-05-51-52093 46.06
151-05-51-52093 149.04
151-05-51-52093 0.72
151-05-51-52093 2.59
151-05-51-52093 4.59
151-05-51-52093 13.98
151-05-51-52093 27.99
151-05-51-52093 27.99
151-05-51-52093 39.95
151-05-51-52429 34.36
151-05-51-52429 52.23
151-05-51-52429 100.90
151-05-51-52093 0.28
151-05-51-52093 32.99
151-05-51-52429 170.74
151-05-51-52429 102.42
151-05-51-52199 62.50
151-05-51-52085 130.00
151-05-51-52093 35.96
151-05-51-52093 22.95
151-05-51-52093 22.99
151-05-51-52093 26.36

Post Dates: - 3/4/2025

2/28/2025 3:38:41 PM

Page 2 of 11



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Falls City Mercantile
Falls City Mercantile
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Suppiy
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Brad GriHin Consulting
Ei Camino Electric

E{ Camino Electric
Farm & City Supply
Farm & City Supply
Sara Rue

Unifirst Corportation
Southeast Nebraska Communi

Fund: 170 - Library

Kansas Municipal Utilities
Farm & City Supply

Efectronic Contracting Campa
Amazon Capital Services
Ingram

Falls City Sanitation Service
Southeast Nebraska Communi

Fund: 180 - Cemetery

Kansas Municipal Utilities
League Association of Risk Ma
Bosselman Pump & Pantry Inc
American Solutions for Busine
Southeast Nebraska Communi

Fund: 190 - Streets

Falis City Journal

Kansas Municipal Utilities
Verizon

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Harmon's OK Tire

NMC Inc

NMC Inc

League Association of Risk Ma
Midwest Service & Sales Co.
Midwest Service & Sales Co.
Midwest Service & Sales Co.
Midwest Service & Sales Co.
Midwest Service & Sales Co.
Midwest Service & Sales Co.
Bosselman Pump & Paniry Inc

Payable Number

015275
015275
015275
015275
015275
015275
015275
015287
015294
015301
236392
236392
015349
015350
015351
015401
015401
202429
INV0G441
INV06441
015521
015521
02-2025-000283
1910079006
INV06440

019515

014478

67992
1lcmk-ykck-7min
INV06435
INV06443
INV06440

019515
112480
INV06437
inv07864418
INVOG6440

INV0G444
019515
06104613018
014675
014675
62737
5102202549
5102202549
112480
66690
66690
66690
66690
66690
66690
INV06437

Post Date

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
02/19/2025
02/19/2025
02/19/2025
02/19/2025
02/19/2025
02/19/2025
03/04/2025

Description (item}

Wire 14/2 NMWG 150" Reet |
1/2" 90D EMT Comp Conn ite
1/2" Ciamp Conn Item#3179
Keyls Plstc Lampholdr WH fte
1/2" Comp Coupling liem#3
1/2" Set Screw Coupling  lte
1/2" Clamp Conn Item#3179
1/2" comp coupling

1/2" comp coupling

1/2" comp conn

Golden Coffee Filter Packet
Hawthorn Foaming Hand Soa
credit

ied a19 e26 bw 75w 2pk
clamp 11/16-1.5 Marin

chain strt coit #2 125'

quick link 1/8" zinc

blue tooth receiver

service auditorium

breaker

remover pro strenth 16oz
g00 gone

Rental AddOn Payment for Au
mops

service

2025 qgtly dues
flag nylon 3x5 US
service

samsung remote
books

service

service

2025 qtly dues

insurance

fuel

Permanent Records - Burial P
service

ads

2025 qtly dues

service

screws

balts nuts washers gr 8

tire repair

lease skid loader 265-05
lease skid steer bucket 84"
insurance

hydrualic fitting #956-005-022
bracekit #25014056

Bolt retainer kit 25014090
hydraulic cyclinder #2501204
push fram #25013938
Center Mast #25013889

fuel

Post Dates: - 3/4/2025

Account Number

151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52429
151-05-51-52429
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52420
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52429
151-05-51-52429
151-05-51-21600
151-05-51-52429
151-05-51-52011
Fund 151 - Auditorim Total:

170-05-52-51310
170-05-52-52093
170-05-52-52199
170-05-52-52429
170-05-52-52400
170-05-52-52085
170-05-52-52011
Fund 170 - Library Total:

180-05-53-51310
180-05-53-52160
180-05-53-52014
180-05-53-52429
180-05-53-52011

Fund 180 - Cemetery Total:

190-03-31-52147
190-03-31-51310
190-03-31-52011
190-03-31-52429
190-03-31-52429
190-03-31-52014
190-03-31-52175
190-03-31-52175
190-03-31-52160
190-03-31-52015
190-03-31-52015
190-03-31-52015
190-03-31-52015
190-03-31-52015
190-03-31-52015
190-03-31-52014

Amount

64.75
14.36
1.58
18.36
5.16
5.94
2.37
1.29
5.16
9.03
37.53
227.40
-35,90
25,98
7.16
41.44
1.99
84.54
150.00
12.55
8.99
7.59
250.00
88.08
100.18
2,861.68

320.17
33.99
402.15
12.00
2,133.09
65.00
223.83
3,190.23

320.17
145.48
265.44
478.50
99,13
1,308.72

99,13
320.16
42,94
5.10
24.07
20.00
8,150.00
100.00
178.98
7.00
200.00
50.00
400.00
625.00
1,325.00
3,498.23

2/28/2075 3:38:41 PM

Page 3 of 11



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

Falls City Sanitation Service
Kinetic Leasing
Southeast Nebraska Communi

Fund: 195 - Mechanic Shop
Power Plan

Power Plan

Power Plan

Power Plan

SEWER EQUIFMENT CO OF A
Kansas Municipat Utilities
Titan Machinery

Farm & City Supply

Titan Machinery
Armbruster Motor Co
Power Plan

Power Plan

Power Plan

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Falls City Auto Supply

Falls City Auto Supply

Falls City Auto Supply
O'Reilly Automotive Inc
Ditch Witch Under Con
Ditch Witch Under Con
Ditch Witch Under Con
Hullman's Ford Lincoln, Inc.
O'Reilly Automotive Inc
Southeast Nebraska Communi

Fund: 205 - Dispatching
Kansas Municipal Utilities
Southeast Nebraska Communi

Fund: 250 - LB840
Midwest Engineering, Inc

Fund: 600 - Electric

Falls City Journal

Jr's Repair

Jeo Consulting Group Inc
Kansas Municipal Utilities
Kansas Municipal Utilities
Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply
McMaster-Carr
McMaster-Carr

Payable Number

INVOB443
319749
INVQG6440

2190019
2190029
2192133
2199411
0000227398
019515
ps0598224-1
014480
ps0602664-1
pcp-721262
8003167
8003167
8003167
015002
015002
015002
015002
015002
015002
015002
015002
015002
74961
74961
74961
5895-224045
p53407
p53407
p53407
117113
5895-224426
INV06440

019515
iNV05440

24007-1

iNV05424
fc 1015
157325
19515
19842
014370
014463
014589
014589
014589
014589
39676295
39686356

Post Date

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

Description {Item) Account Number Amount
service 190-03-31-52085 65.00
lease 2022 street sweeper 190-03-31-52175 45,301.11
seryice 190-03-31-52011 51.19
Fund 190 - 5treets Total: 60,462.91

nut 195-03-66-52330 75.23
nuts 195-03-66-52330 193.15
nuts 195-03-66-52330 -175.88
freight 195-03-66-52330 -92.50
valve, relief, hyd pressure #12  195-03-66-52330 174.23
2025 gtly dues 195-03-66-51310 320.16
kit seals 195-03-66-52330 115.72
hth chior tab 3" 8lb 195-03-66-52330 99.99
antenna 195-03-66-52330 81.63
oil 195-03-66-52330 63.36
drain plug 195-03-66-52330 31.19
feul pump 195-03-66-52330 78.25
gasket 195-03-606-52330 111
3 3 black die cut vinyl 195-03-66-52330 2.37
1 3 black die cut vinyl 195-03-66-52330 2.37
0 3 black die cut vinyl 195-03-66-52330 2.37
5 3 black die cut vinyl 195-03-66-52330 1.58
8 3 bfack die cut vinyl 195-03-66-52330 1.58
7 3 black die cut vinyl 195-03-66-52330 2.37
4 3 black die cut vinyl 195-03-66-52330 2.37
2 3 black die cut vinyl 195-03-66-52330 3.95
6 3 black die cut vinyl 195-03-66-52330 3.16
filters 195-03-66-52330 8.93
filter 195-03-66-52330 8.12
filter 195-03-66-52330 7.67
mud flap 195-03-66-52330 25,62
shaft seal 195-03-66-52330 21,22
pate valve shaf 195-03-66-52330 91.57
knob 195-03-66-52330 22.72
spark plugs 195-03-66-52330 17.22
qthydfiuid 195-03-66-52330 48.69
service 195-03-66-52011 5.17
Fund 195 - Mechanic Shop Total: 1,244.69

2025 qtly dues 205-02-24-51310 320.16
service 205-02-24-52011 709.64
Fund 205 - Dispatching Total: 1,029.80

NCC pay request 1 crafedge 250-06-00-52901 20,205.48
Fund 250 - LBB40 Total: 20,205.48

ads 600-07-00-52147 170,10
service 600-07-00-52198 2,076.08
2021 electrical dist 600-07-00-52197 9,325.65
2025 quarterly dues 600-07-61-51310 720,38
tuition Cepuran 600-07-62-51310 500,00
SCrews 600-07-62-52420 21.49
flex magnetic tape 600-07-62-52429 8.16
seafoam motor frtmnt 600-07-62-52420 9.67
tarp poly blue/brn 600-07-62-52420 12.89
yard tarp blk/grn 600-07-62-52420 19.34
tie down rtch 600-07-62-52420 26.86
ftexible shaft coupling sleeve  600-07-62-52429 179.22
v belt 600-07-62-52429 182.47

Post Dates; - 3/4/2025

2/28/2025 3:38:41 PM

Page 4 of 11



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

Johansen Drainage & Tile
Johansen Drainage & Tile
Johansen Drainage & Tile
Verizon

Verizon

FARABEE MECHANICAL

Farm & City Supply

Jeo Consulting Group Inc
Amazon Capitai Services
Wesco Distribution

Wesco Distribution

Wesco Distribution

Farsis Engineering

Wolfes Printing

H-0-H WATER TECHNOLOGY, 1
Healy Law Qffices, LLC
Bossefman Pump & Pantry Inc
Bossefman Pump & Pantry Inc
Core & Main LP

Core & Main LP

Core & Main LP

Tyler Technologies inc

Falls City Sanitation Service
Falls City Sanitation Service
Farm & City Supply

ATCO International

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Brad Griffin Consulting

Brad Griffin Consuiting

True Ag & Turf, LLC

JK Energy Consulting LLC
Utility Department Petty Cash
Utility Department Petty Cash
Border States

Border States

Border States

Core & Main LP

Core & Main LP

Wartsila North America Inc
Border States

Core & Main LP

Jeo Consulting Group Inc
Southeast Nebraska Communi
Southeast Nebraska Communi
Bosselman Pump & Pantry Inc

Fund: 610 - Water

Falls City Journat

Core & Main LP

Kansas Municipal Utilities
Nebraska DEE

USA Bluebook

USA Bluebook

Amazon Capital Services
Farm & City Supply
Milfer & Associates

Core & Main LP
Johansen Drainage & Tile
Verizon

Payable Number

INVQ6428
V06430
INVQ6431
6104613018
6104613018
001272025-05
014679
157949
1d6y-tvhe-11cj
510117
510117
510117
24996

3639
694123
22659
INVO6436
INV(6436
w0385933
w385882
w385933
0025-494581
INV06432
INV06432
015178
10640282
015264
015264
202428
202430
pod278
2366
INV06423
INV06423
925860587
529860592
529860592
wd57899
wW415280
1102322085
929896518
w475248
158743
INVOG427
INVOG427
INVO6433

INVO6424
w087127
19515
INVO6446
invQ0590807
inv00590807
19jS-tfer-gye9
014297
0052
w312710
INV06429
6104613018

Post Date

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
02/21/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
03/04/2025
02/18/2025
02/20/2025
02/21/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

Description {Item)

service 1618 lane

bruce merz

city service

sérvice

service

kax

fuse

2021 electrical dist
calculator

fuse

fuse

fuse

fc grid resiliency grant

toner

can solution

service

fuel

fuel

supplies

supplies

2" cas iron flange kit

service

jan 2025

jan 2025

8 digit calculator

tnt

5lb bx pp exterior 9x3
SCrews

toner

metlanex 10g card for server
freight

service

postage

postage

Maciean Vertical Arrestor Brkt
Tape-3M Super 88 2" Wide Bj
6" beli end SCH 40 PVC {E129
credit inv w385882

OMNI + 2" C2 Meter

service tech

3M Terny Kit W/it2 Strd Stem
credit

2021 electrical dist

service

service

fuel

ads

supplies

2025 quarterly dues

course fees campbel, fourake
3m 6000 series multi gas vapo
3m 6300 series haif mask resp
multi gas/vapor cartride 6006
supplies

water main relocation
supplies

21st chase

service

Post Dates: -3/4/2025

Account Number

600-07-61-520594
600-07-61-52094
600-07-61-52094
600-07-61-52011
600-07-62-52011
600-07-62-52094
600-07-62-52420
600-07-00-52157
600-07-61-53610
600-07-62-52429
600-07-62-52429
600-07-62-52429
600-07-00-52199
600-07-61-52372
600-07-62-52429
600-07-00-52109
600-07-61-52014
600-07-62-52014
600-07-62-52094
G600-07-62-52094
G600-07-62-52094
600-07-61-52155
600-07-61-52085
600-07-62-52085
600-07-62-52420
600-07-62-52429
600-07-61-52429
600-07-61-52429
600-07-62-52372
600-07-61-52195
600-07-61-52387
600-07-00-52198
600-07-00-52387
000-07-62-52387
600-07-00-10500
600-07-00-10500
600-07-00-10500
600-07-62-52094
600-07-62-52094
600-07-62-52094
600-07-00-10500
600-07-62-52094
600-07-00-52197
600-07-61-52011
600-07-62-52011
600-07-61-52014
Fund 600 - Electric Tota!:

610-07-65-52147
610-07-00-109500
610-07-65-51310
610-07-65-51310
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-52157
610-07-00-10500
610-07-65-52094
610-07-65-52011

Amount

500.00
3,800.00
1,525.00

155.76
128.82
554,78
9.66
5,081.25
80.72
4.83
4.84
4.84
9,075.00
24.73
159.03
4,375.00
471.74
115.40
933,24
275.24
89.36
247.50
65.00
130.00
9.23
150.23
52.66
11.82
162.90
77.04
87.27
580.00
164.25
34.67
641.24
59.15
35,65
-246.93
1,891.13
17,617.21
313.79
-910.53
3,608.11
679,00
65.56
969,93

67,117.43

170.10
80.44
720.38
160.00
71.36
61.10
98.84
53.74
577.50
88,99
1,950.00
104,97

2/28/2025 3:38:41 PM

Page 5 of 11



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

American Backflow Preventio
Farm & City Supply
Bosselman Pump & Pantry inc
Core & Main LP

Tyler Technologies Inc

Utility Service Co Inc

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

HYDRO OPTHMIZATION &
HYDRO OPTIMIZATION &
Lincotn Winwater Works Co
Lincotn Winwater Works Co
Lincotn Winwater Works Co
Utility Department Petty Cash
American Backllow Preventio
Core & Main LP

Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, Inc of Oma
Municipal Supply, inc of Oma
Lincoln Winwater Works Co
Lincoln Winwater Works Co
Lincoln Winwater Works Co
Core & Main LP

Southeast Nebraska Communi
Southeast Nebraska Communi
Southeast Nebraska Communi
Bosselman Pump & Pantry inc

Fund: 620 - Gas

Fals City Journal

UTELITY SAFETY & DESIGN INC
Kansas Municipal Utilities
Waolfes Printing

Verizon

One Call Concepts, Inc
Bosselman Pump & Pantry inc
Tyler Technologies Inc

Falis City Sanitation Service
STEVE DECKINGER

Marc Ramsey

Utility Department Petty Cash
KOONS GAS MEASUREMENT {
Southeast Nebraska Communi
Bosselman Pump & Pantry Inc

Fund: 630 - Wastewater
Falis City Journal
Kansas Municipal Utilities

Payable Number

19

015037
INVD6436
w0385933
0025-494581
202430
015238
015252
015292
015292
015292
12518
12518
108795 01
108795 01
108795 01
INV06423
20
w385761
0933806-IN
0933807-IN
0933808-IN
0933809-IN
0933809-IN
0933809-IN
0933809-IN
0933805-IN
0933809-IN
0933805-IN
0933805-IN
0933805-IN
10903201
10903201
10903201
w475248
INV06427
INVOG427
[NV06427
INV06433

INVOG4 24
in20246864
19515

3545
6104613018
5010132
INVO6436
0025-494581
INVOG6432
INVO6425
INVO6426
INV06423
76716
INV06427
INV06433

INV0B424
19515

Post Date

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/18/2025
02/21/2025
02/21/2025
02/21/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
02/19/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025

Description {Item}

training aitken

cell phone holder large

fuel

supplies

service

1,000,000 elevated city tank-g
handling

storage box 13-comp cle
water pump pliers 12"

dril bit

hmr bt 5/16x10"

water controf system

water control system

1* balf curb stop C-FIP Ford B2
2" baltvalve brass LFFBV-3C {
3/4" x 2" brass nipple {W961)
postage

training - chesnut

supplies

road box extension C&B P-110
1" I-1 ball curb stop Ford B11-
11/4" stop box complete For
6" x 4" MJ reducer L/ACC {W1
4" Uni-Flange for PVC {RED -
4" M 5.5' bury fire hydrant 5
6" x 24" anchor coupling (W1
6" x 18" Anchor Coupling {W1
4" M) BOLT ACCESS PK (W171
6" Foster Adpt & valve fitting
4" Foster adpt & valve fitting
4" Uni-Flange for CAST {Grey -
4" MJ 5.5 bury fire hydrant 4.
4" Uni-Flange for PVC {RED -
4" Uni-Flange for CAST {Grey -
credit inv w3g5932

service

sarvice

service cail

fuel

ads

2025 gas system section
2025 quarterly dues
service order pads
service

jan 2025

fuel

service

jan 2025

travel

travel

postage

American regulator 1 1/4"x1
service

fuel

ads
2025 quarterly dues

Account Number

610-07-65-51310
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-52014
610-07-00-10500
610-07-65-52195
610-07-65-52199
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-53550
610-07-65-53550
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-65-52387
610-07-65-51310
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-00-10500
610-07-65-52011
610-07-65-52011
610-07-67-53200
610-07-65-52014

Fund 610 - Water Total:

620-07-63-52147
620-07-63-53550
620-07-63-51310
620-(07-63-52372
620-07-63-52011
620-07-63-52199
620-07-63-52014
620-07-63-52195
620-07-63-52085
620-07-63-51310
620-07-63-51310
620-07-63-52387
620-07-63-10500
620-07-63-52011
620-07-63-52014

Fund 620 - Gas Total:

630-07-64-52147
630-07-64-52931

Post Dates: -3/4/2025
Amount

90.00
16.11
133.29
66.65
247.50
7,699.92
10.75
13.96
59.11
32,24
27.93
150,392.24
66,841.00
416,03
45.69
8,59
344,90
90.00
-80.44
228.35
740.61
138.63
100.21
143,48
3,160.16
241.60
279,99
168.80
131.88
113.94
147.70
4,979.40
62.00
92.48
-66.49
465,22
91,67
193.50
201.40
242,157.42

170.10
19,200.00
720,37
37.63
184.99
11.01
330.67
247.50
65.00
170.00
500.40
164.25
401.04
59.34
349.58
TTT22,612.88

170.10
720.37

2/28{2025 3:38:41 PM

Page 6 of 11



Expense Approval Report
Vendor Name

USA Bluebook

USA Bluebook

Miller & Assaciates

Verizon

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Farm & City Supply

Nebraska Generator Service L
Bosselman Pump & Pantry inc
Tyler Technologies inc

Falls City Sanitation Service
Brown County Transfer
Midwest Laboratories, Inc
MORSE EQUIPMENT COMPAN
Utility Department Petty Cash
Southeast Nebraska Communi
Bosselman Pump & Pantry Inc

Fund: 800 - Airport

Falls City Sanitation Service
Stateline Propane Service Inc
Southeast Nebraska Cormmuni
Meyer Home Center

Payakle Number

inv00588741
inv00588741
0051
6104613018
014795
014795
014795
014797
014868
014868
014960
014960
014961
014961
18547
INVD6436
0025-494581
INVD6432
152269
1221942
M-648899
INV06423
INV0G427
INV06433

INV06448
1129276
INVOB447
55190

Post Date

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025
03/04/2025

Description {ltem}

HACH ammonia nitrogen LR s
HACH ammonia nitrogen HR s
NE lift station

service

tee

cap slip

elbow 90

pipe sch40

thermai gloves

thermal gloves

tarp

duct tape

fencer/tool repair

handling

Standby Generator load test
fuel

service

fan 2025

waste

supplies

Blower #1 repairs

postage

service

fuel

service
propane
service
service

Post Dates: - 3/4/2025

Account Number

630-07-64-52300
630-07-64-52300
630-07-64-52197
630-07-64-52011
630-07-64-52003
630-07-64-52003
630-07-64-52003
630-07-64-52093
630-07-64-52333
630-07-64-52333
630-07-64-52935
630-07-64-52935
630-07-64-52420
630-07-64-52420
630-07-64-52096
630-07-64-52014
630-07-64-52195
630-07-64-52085
630-07-64-52085
630-07-64-52199
630-07-64-52096
630-07-64-52387
630-07-64-52011
630-07-64-52014
Fund 630 - Wastewater Total:

800-07-00-52085
800-07-00-52018
800-07-00-52011
800-07-00-52093

Fund 800 - Airport Total:

Grand Total:

Amount

191,00
195,43
1,410.10
64.96
1.39
1.39
417
7.59
7.99
7.99
22.99
7.99
113.98
10.00
2,122.50
412.17
247,50
90.00
225,00
148,44
12,473.00
164.25
111.93
275.46

19,207.69

65.00
489.00
212,79
157.60
924.39

453,754.65

2/28/2025 3:38:41 PM

Page 7 of 11



Expense Approval Report

Fund
100 - General
110 - Police

115 - Animal Control

120 - Fire

Fund Summary

130 - Building Inspections & Cede Enforcement

150 - Parks

151 - Auditorim
170 - Library
180 - Cemetery
190 - Streets

195 - Mechanic Shop

205 - Dispatching
250 - LB340

600 - Electric

610 - Water

620 - Gas

630 - Wastewater
800 - Airport

Account Number
100-01-11-51310
100-01-11-52011
100-01-11-52014
100-01-11-52118
100-01-11-52147
100-01-11-52195
100-01-11-52199
100-01-11-52372
100-01-11-52387
100-01-11-52429
110-02-21-51300
110-02-21-51310
110-02-21-52011
110-02-21-52014
110-02-21-52109
110-02-21-52118
110-02-21-52387
115-02-23-52011
115-02-23-52014
115-02-23-52020
115-02-23-52429
120-02-22-52011
120-02-22-52015
130-02-23-51310
130-02-23-52011
130-02-23-52147
150-05-51-21600
150-05-51-51310
150-05-51-52011
150-05-51-52014
150-05-51-52085
150-05-51-52093
150-0%-51-52160
150-05-51-52300
150-05-51-52420

Grand Total:

Account Summary

Account Name

Training, Meetings & Co
Telepheone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Printing & Publishing
Advertising Expense
Technology Services
Other Contractual Servic
Office Supplies
Postage/Shipping
Supplies & Materials
Subscriptions & Educatio
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Legal Expense

Printing Expense
Postage/Shipping
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Electric Expense
Supplies & Materials
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Repa
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone

Advertising Expense
Deposits Payable
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Refuse/Recylcing
Building/Grounds Maint
Insurance Expense
Chemnical

Small Equipment

Expense Amount
3,433.43
4,425.79

226.96
247.58
520,05
2,577.92
2,861.68
3,190.23
1,308.72
60,462.91
1,244.69
1,029.80
20,205.48
67,117.43
242,157.42
22,612.48
19,207.69
924,39
453,754.65

Expense Amount
320.17
651.75

38.90
328.50
855.90

1,067.04

62,50

88,98

19.69

0.00
120,00
320.17
897.10
1,256.62
1,549.30
273.50
9.10

42.94
114.75

57.02

12.25
127.58
120.00
320.17

42.94
156.94

50.00
320.17

85.88
692.04
130,00

96,56
242,17

60.00
299,00

Post Dates: - 3/4/2025

Report Summary

2/28/2025 3:38:41 PM

Page 8 of 11



Expense Approval Report

Account Number
150-05-51-52429
151-05-51-21600
151-05-51-52011
151-05-51-52085
151-05-51-52093
151-05-51-52147
151-05-51-52199
151-05-51-52420
151-05-51-52429
170-05-52-51310
170-05-52-52011
170-05-52-52085
170-05-52-52093
170-05-52-52199
170-05-52-52400
170-05-52-52429
180-05-53-51310
180-05-53-52011
180-05-53-52014
180-05-53-52160
180-05-53-52429
190-03-31-51310
190-03-31-52011
190-03-31-52014
190-03-31-52015
190-03-31-52085
190-03-31-52147
190-03-31-52160
190-03-31-52175
190-03-31-52429
195-03-66-51310
195-03-66-52011
195-03-66-52330
205-02-24-51310
205-02-24-52011
250-06-00-52901
600-07-00-10500
600-07-00-52109
600-07-00-52147
600-07-00-52197
600-07-00-52198
600-07-00-52199
600-07-00-52387
600-07-61-51310
600-07-61-52011
600-07-61-52014
600-07-61-52085
600-07-61-52094
600-07-61-52195
600-07-61-52372
600-07-61-52387
600-07-61-52429
600-07-61-53610
600-07-62-51310
600-07-62-52011
600-07-62-52014
600-07-62-52085
600-07-62-52094

Account Summary

Account Name

Supplies & Materials
Deposits Payable
Telephone
Refuse/Recycling
Buifding/Grounds Maint
Advertising Expense
Other Contractuai Servic
Smatl Equipment
Supplies & Materials
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone
Refuse/Recycling
Building/Grounds Maint
Other Contractual Servic
Books & Periadicals
Supplies & Materials
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Insurance Expense
Supplies & Materials
Trainings, Meetings & Co
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Vehicle/Equipnient Repa
Refuse/Recycling
Advertising Expense
Insurance Expense

Rent & Leases - Equipme
Supplies & Materials
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone

Merchandise for Resale
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone

Grants Issued
Inventory-Electric Gener
Legal Expense
Advertising Expense
Engineering Expense
Other Professional Servi
Other Contractual Servic
Postage/Shipping
Training, Meetings & Ca
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Refuse/Recycling
Infrastructure Maintena
Technology Expense
Office Supplies
Postage/Shipping
Supplies & Materials
Office Equipment
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Refuse/Recycling
Infrastructure Maintena

Expense Amount
602.10
250,00
100.18
130.00

1,070.87
28.42
62.50
84.54

1,135.17

320,17
223.83
65.00
33.99
402,15
2,133.09
12.00
320.17
95,13
265.44
145.48
478.50
320.16
94.13

3,518.23

2,607.00
65.00
99,13

178,98
53,551,141
29.17
320.16
5.17
919,36
320.16
709.64
20,205.48
1,049.83
4,375,00
170.10
18,015.01
2,656.08
9,075.00
164.25
720.38
834,76

1,441.67
65.00

5,825.00

324.54
24,73
87.27
64.48
80.72
500.00
154.38
115.40
130.00
20,203.50

Post Dates: -3/4/2025

2/28/2025 3:38:41 PM

Page 9 of 11



Expense Approval Report

Account Number
600-07-62-52372
600-07-62-52387
600-07-62-52420
600-07-62-52429
610-07-00-10500
610-07-65-51310
610-07-65-52011
610-07-65-52014
610-07-65-52094
610-07-65-52147
610-07-65-52195
610-07-65-52197
610-07-65-52199
610-07-65-52387
610-07-65-52429
610-07-65-53550
610-07-67-53200
620-07-63-10500
620-07-63-51310
620-07-63-52011
620-07-63-52014
620-07-63-52085
G20-07-63-52147
620-07-63-52195
620-07-63-52199
620-07-63-52372
620-07-63-52387
620-07-63-53550
630-07-64-52011
630-07-64-52014
630-07-64-52085
630-07-64-52093
630-07-64-52096
630-07-64-52147
630-07-64-52195
630-07-64-52197
630-07-64-52199
630-07-64-52300
630-07-64-52333
0630-07-64-52387
630-07-64-52420
630-07-64-52931
630-07-64-52535
800-07-00-52011
800-07-00-52018
800-07-00-52085
800-07-00-52093

Project Account Key

t*Nune!*

20100052197
21100152197
22100052109
22100052198
24100753550
24100952197

Account Summary

Account Name
Office Supplies
Postage/Shipping
Small Equipment
Supplies & Materials
Inventory-Water
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
tnfrastructure Maintena
Advertising Expense
Technology Expense
Engineering Expense
Other Contractual Servic
Postage/Shipping
Supplies & Materials
Utility Systems & Structu
Buildings
Inventory-Gas
Training, Meetings & Co
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Refuse/Recycling
Advertising Fxpense
Technology Expense
Other Contractual Servic
Office Supplies
Postage/Shipping
Utility Systems & Structu
Telephone
Vehicle/Equipment Main
Refuse/Recycling
Building/Grounds Maint
Operational Equipment
Advertising Expense
Technology Expense
Engineering Expense
Other Contractual Servic
Chemicals
Uniforms/Safety Supplie
Postage/Shipping
Small Equipment
Training, Meetings & Co
Other Supplies
Telephone
Heat/Gas Expense
Refuse/Recycling
Building/Grounds Maint
Grand Total:

Project Account Summary

Expense Amount
162.90
34,67
109,14
693.62
11,238.69
1,060.38
b61.86
334.69
1,950.00
170.10
247.50
577.50
7,699.92
344.90
445.14
217,233.24
193.50
401.64
1,390.77
244,33
680.25
65.00
170.10
247.50
11.01
37.63
164,25
19,200.00
176.89
687.63
315.00
14.54
14,595.50
170.10
247.50
1,410.10
148.44
326.43
15,98
164,25
123,98
72037
30.98
212.79
489.00
65.00
157.60
453,754.65

Expense Amount
171,964.82
20,205.48
18,015.01
4,375.00

580.00
19,200.00
1,410.10

Post Dates: - 3/4/2025

2/28/2025 3:38:41 PM

Page 10 of 11



Expense Approval Report

Project Account Key
24-1010-52197
24-1017-53200
24101853550

Project Account Summary

Grand Total:

Expense Amount
577.50

193.50
217,233.24

453,754.65

Post Dates: - 3/4/2025

2/28/2025 3:38:4% PM

Page 11 of 11






REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD MEMBERS
OF THE SOUTHEAST NEBRASKA LAND BANK
February 13, 2025
2307 Barada Street, Falls City, Nebraska

A regular meeting of the Board Members of Southeast Nebraska Land Bank of the City of Falls City,
Nebraska, was held at the City Hall, 2307 Barada Street in said City on the 13t day of February 2025, at
12:04 o’clock P.M. Present were: Board Members: Garrett Harring, Ed Harris, LaMarr Matthes, Rachel
Rankin, Clint Sailors. Absent: Marilyn Capps, Toni Wintz. Also present was Director/Secretary, Lucas
Froeschl; City Administrator, Anthony Nussbaum; Ex-Officio Mitch Merz; City Building Inspector, Blake
Buckminster; and guest Joleen Stoller. Lucas Froeschi recorded the minutes of the meeting. All
proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the
public.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Lucas Froeschl, Executive Director, gave the Director’s Report. The Delinquent Tax Sale is scheduled for
the First Monday of March (3/3/35) and discussed the Land Bank’s strategy to identify properties the
private market has abandoned. [t was also noted that the 212 W 10t Street property has been acquired
by the Land Bank.

CONSENT AGENDA

A motion was made by Ed Harris and seconded by Clint Sailors to approve the consent agenda as follows:
WHEREAS, certain business of the Southeast Nebraska Land Bank of the City of Falis City (City) transpires
on a regular and routine basis or is not of controversial nature; and WHEREAS, roll call votes on each
individual issue greatly extend the meeting time. NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY the
Southeast Nebraska Land Bank that in the interest of economizing time, yet complying with the Public
Meeting Laws of the State of Nebraska, which require roll call voting, the following issues are hereby
consolidated in this Consent Resolution: 1. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY the Southeast Nebraska Land
Bank that the minutes from the January 9, 2025, regular meeting is hereby approved. 2. BE IT FURTHER
RESOLVED BY the Southeast Nebraska Land Bank that the agenda for February 13, 2025, is hereby
approved. 3. BEIT FURTHER RESOLVED BY the Southeast Nebraska Land Bank that the Treasurer’s Report
was given with $69,434.90 in funds, of which $30,000 is held in a CD. 4. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY the
Southeast Nebraska Land Bank that the Consent Agenda for February 13, 2025, is hereby approved. Roll
was called on this motion and the members voted as follows: “YEA” Garrett Harring, Ed Harris, LaMarr
Matthes, Rachel Rankin, Clint Sailors. “NAY” None. Absent: Marilyn Capps, Toni Wintz. Motion carried.

LOT DEVELOPMENT: NIC SIELER, HILLCREST HOMES

A discussion was held after a presentation by Nic Sieler of Hillcrest Homes. He has offered options for a
few pre-constructed homes that could fit on Land Bank lots, especially those that are 50-foot wide.
Current city setbacks for residential side yards are 10 feet for primary residences, but Nic was noted many
rural communities offer developer-friendly side setbacks at 5-1/2 to 7-1/2 feet as a standard variance. It
was noted that this ordinance could be changed, but there is no immediate need to do so. The board
believes there are enough 75-foot wide lots that we don’t need to try and cram narrow houses on 50-foot
wide lots, All ofthe homes Nic offers meet the 2019 IRC-codes for homes; they are not HUD-coded homes.
Nic offered suggestions for what other communities are doing to solve housing issues and noted his
willingness to assist Falls City. He invited the board to visit the factory in York, Nebraska. Discussion item
only, no motion was made.



REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

A discussion was held regarding a Redevelopment Agreement for buyers of Land Bank properties. The
goal is to ensure Land Bank properties are developed once acquired. The Redevelopment Agreement
proposes 8 months to return an existing property to a habitable condition or 12 months in the case of a
vacant lot or commercial /industrial building. The board suggested adding a penalty clause that the Land
Bank is compensated for each lost year based on assessed value and what could have been collected via
the 50% division of taxes statute. A motion was made by Clint Sailors and seconded by Rachel Rankin to
approve the agreement along with penalty clause. Roll was called on this motion and the members voted
as follows: “YEA” Garrett Harring, Ed Harris, LaMarr Matthes, Rachel Rankin, Clint Sailors. “NAY” None.
Absent: Marilyn Capps, Toni Wintz. Motion carried.

FOR SALE BY OWNER SIGNAGE

A discussion was held regarding for sale signage at properties owned by the Land Bank. The Nebraska
Real Estate Commission Director was contacted who said this is alowable but suggested we use For Sale
by Owner instead of just For Sale. Multiple options were presented with heavy duty angle iron signs, more
affordable gauge wire frames (new and used), and the hoard ultimately decided to go with the more
affordable gauge wire frames and local printer for full color double sided coroplast signs. 1t was noted to
include For Sale By Owner text, land bank logo, phone number, and QR code to website with lot listings.
A motion was made by Clint Sailors and seconded by Garrett Hairring to approve the purchase of +/- 25
coroplast signs from Merz Ink to fit on affordable gauge wire frames estimated at under $350. Roll was
called on this motion and the members voted as follows: “YEA” Garrett Harring, Ed Harris, LaMarr
Matthes, Rachel Rankin, Clint Sailors. “NAY” None. Absent: Marilyn Capps, Toni Wintz. Motion carried.

Board Member Ed Harris had to excuse himself for another obligation and excited the meeting.
2025 LAWN MOWING BIDS

A discussion was held regarding lawn mowing bids for the 2025 season. 1t was noted that the previous
year’s contract can be extended with existing vendor if holding previous bid price. 2024 bid price was
$25.46 per lot per montb. The Land Bank currently owns 23 lots at 8 locations: 820 McLean (2 lots],
1704 Morton (4 lots), 1604 Morton (4 lots), 710 W 21st (2 lots), 1515 Lane (2 lots), 813 Harlan (3 lots),
1223 Lane (2 lots), 212 W 10% (4 lots.} A motion was made by Clint Sailors and seconded by Rachel
Rankin to extend the 2024 agreement with Gerdes Lawn Care through the 2025 season at $25.46 per lot
per month. Roll was called on this motion and the members voted as follows: “YEA” Garrett Harring,
LaMarr Matthes, Rachel Rankin, Clint Sailors. “NAY” None. Absent: Marilyn Capps, Ed Harris, Toni Wintz.
Motion carried.

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 1:20pm.

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of proceedings had and
done by the Chairman and Board on February 13, 2025; that all of the subjects included in the foregoing
proceedings were contained in the agenda for the meeting, kept continually current and available for
public inspection at the office EDGE, Inc.; that such agenda items were sufficiently descriptive to give the
public reasonable notice of the matters to be considered at the meeting; that such subjects were
contained in said agenda for at least twenty-four hours prior to said meeting; that at least one copy of all
reproducible material discussed at the meeting was available at the meeting for examination and
copying by members of the public; that the said minutes from which the foregoing proceedings have
been extracted were in written form and available for public inspection within ten working days and
prior to the next convened meeting of said body; that all news media requesting notification concerning
meetings of said body were provided advance notification of the time and place of said meeting and the



subjects to be discussed at said meeting; and that a current copy of the Nebraska Open Meetings Act was
available and accessible to members of the public, posted during such meeting in the room in which
such meeting was held.

DIRECTOR

SECRETARY CHAIRPERSON



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Application has been made to the State of Nebraska, Liquor Control Commission by Palo
Bajo, LLC, dba/El Canelo Mexican Restaurant for a Class | Liquor License for their place
of business located at 1022 Harlan Street, Falls City, Nebraska. The Mayor and City
Council will hold a public hearing on March 3, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. at the City Hali, 2307
Barada Street, Falls City, Nebraska at which time evidence will be heard bearing upon
the propriety of the issuance of such a license.

Anthony Nussbaum, City Clerk

Please publish: 02/19/2025
Legal Notice
(1) Proof of Publication.

Bill to: Administrative Dept.






NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ANIMAL PERMIT APPLICATION

Notice is hereby given that pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance No. 2004-102 of
the City of Falls City, Brian Lemerond has applied for an animal permit to pasture
and/or stable 1 kangaroo at 2414 Fulton Street, Falls City, Nebraska. The Mayor and
Council will entertain any objections of said permit during the regular meeting at
6:00 P.M., March 3, 2025, in the Council Chambers, 2307 Barada Street, Falls City,
Nebraska.

Anthony Nussbaum, City Clerk

Please publish: ~ Febiuary 19, 2025
February 26, 2025

Legal Notice
(1) Proof of Publication.

Bill to: Administrative Dept.















e Ed Harris— Term Expiring 12/31/2025

o Calvin Buck — Term Expiring 12/31/2025

¢ Mike Dougherty — Term Expiring 12/31/2025
* Jack Bangert — Term Expiring 12/31/2026

o Doug Waller - Term Expiring 12/31/2026

e Kristen Poppe — Term Expiring 12/31/2026

Library Board
o Deb Harris — Term Expiring 5/31/2029

Board of Park Commissioners
¢ Sandy Schwarting — Term Expiring 12/31/2026
* Jleromie Brown — Term Expiring 12/31/2027
¢ Denise Daake — Term Expiring 12/31/2027

Planning Commission
o Lillian Cromer — Term Expiring 12/30/2027
*  Vacant —Term Expiring 12/30/2027

Tree Board
* Lucinda Rieschick — Term Expiring 12/31/2025
* Marsha Roland — Term Expiring 12/31/2025
e Anna Thompson —Term Expiring 12/31/2026
¢ Carol Bentley — Term Expiring 12/31/2026
e Gracie Deckinger — Term Expiring 12/31/2026

CWA Negotiating Committee - {Annual)
¢ Anthony Nussbaum {Management Seat)
s Sandra Ferris (Management Seat)
¢ Trevor Campbell (Management Seat)

IBEW Negotiating Committee ~ (Annual)
s Anthony Nussbaum {Management Seat)
¢ Sandra Ferris (Management Seat)
s  Trevor Campbell {Management Seat)
¢ Frank Killingsworth (Council Seat 1 of 4)

IUOE Negotiating Committee — (Annual)
¢ Anthony Nussbaum {Management Seat)
¢ Sandra Ferris (Management Seat)
s Jameson Baker {Management Seat)

Management Negotiating Committee — (Annual)

* Anthony Nusshaum {Management Seat)

MEAN Board of Directors — (Annual)
¢ Trevor Campbell

Page 2|3






Lease Agreement

Concession Operations at Fiedler Family Ball Complex and Morehead Field

This Agreement is made on March 1%, 2025 between the City of Falls City, Nebraska (the
Lessor) and Girl Scout Troop 20566 (the Lessee).

The City of Falls City, Nebraska has leased the north and south concession stand
buildings for the Fiedler Family Ball Complex at Dallas lones Memorial Park in Falls City,
Nebraska, to the Lessee effective from March 12, 2025, to September 30, 2025. In
addition, the City of Falls City, Nebraska provides the rights for the lessee to operate a
portable concession stand for Morehead Field at Grandview Park.

The Lessee in consideration of the leasing of said property, hereby covenants and
agrees to and with lessor to pay the lessor as rent for the same, as follow, per year, to-wit:
{$15.00) Fifteen Dollars and No Cents, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by the
Lessor.

The Lessor and Lessee further-agree as follows:

1. The Lessee shall keep the generalvicinity of the concession stand clean and clear of
all trash and debris.

2. Lessee shall keep the concession stand open during baseball and softball games as
scheduled by Falls City Recreation, Inhc.

3. The Lessee shall provide as a minimum standard the following food product:

Softdrinks

Hot dogs

Popcorn

Assortment of candy

fce cream

© o0 T o

4. The Lessee shall be responsible for any and all damage to the concession stand and
its contents during the term of this lease.

5. Lessee shall not have the right to sublet or assign this lease.

6. Lessee shall be responsible for all costs of utilities.

7. Lessee shall be responsible for any costs and expenses to operate and maintain
their business at the concessions stand. All expenses for obtaining licenses and
permits to operate said business shall be obtained at the Lessees expense.



8. Ifthe Lessee shall fail to perform any covenant, agreements, or obligations
hereunder, this lease may be forfeited and hereby become null and void at the
option of the Lessor and the Lessor may immediately, or at any time hereafter, re-
enter the premises, repossess the same, and remove therefrom all goods and
chattels of Lessee and dispossess the Lessee and anyone claiming by or under him.

9. This covenant and agreement shall continue to and be binding upon heirs,
executors, administrators and the parties to this lease.

CITY OF FALLS CITY, NEBRASKA, a Municipal Corporation, Lessor

(Lessee)






















CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

Change Order #1

Ownmer: City of Falls City Contractor: SENDD Contracting
Address: 1612 Fulton Street Address: 7407 O Street
City/Village: Falls City, NE City/Village: Lincoln, Ne

A. The contractor agrees to provide all labor and materials to perform the changes, additions or
deletions to the contract as follows:

“See Page 2 of 2 for section A additions and deletions”

B. Total changes in the Contract sum: $2,300.00

C. Total of the revised Contract is: $320,200.00

D. The indicated changes listed herein shall be considered an integral part of the contract
between the owner and the contractor, This change order shall supersede prior provisions in the

event of conflict,

E. Accepted by:

Contractox: Owner:
SENDD Contracting City of Falls City
Jim Warrelmann, Division Manager Mark Harkendorff, Mayor
(Authorized Representative) (Authorized Representative)
(Authorized Representative’s Signature) (Authorized Representative’s Signature)
(Date) (Date)

Page 2 of 2

Change Order #1, cont’d



Original Contract; $317,900.00

Section A:

Add the following to the contract:

Additional excavation & hauling fees due to existing buried foundation: $2,300.00
$2,300.00

Subtract the following from the contract:

Previous Contract: $317,900.00
Total Changes: : $2,300.00

Revised Contract Total: $320,200.00















EQUIPMENT CO.
3250 Harvester Road
Kansas City, Kansas 66115
(Phone) 913-342-1450 (Fax) 913-342-1377
salesi@americanequipment.us

QUOTATION

DATE Quotation #

11/2/2022 | 110222/19KY

NAME / ADDRESS TO CONFIRM ORDER
City of Falls City
uote Accepted b
Anthony Nussbaum Q P y
Date
P.O.#
LEAD TIME TERMS REP - FOB PHONE FAX #

300

WXL 12

36" Hook Height

48" Front

48" Sides

Crossmemberiess

1/8" AR-450 Steel Floor

10 GA Sides, Front, and Tailgate
Chipper Top

Rear Barn Doors

Hook Lift Subframe

JRearRolles

Quoted by Kent Yahne

Total

$138,369.46

This quote is valid for 30 days. Applicable taxes not

included.

Page 2










Wd £T19512 5202/92/T

T 40 1 9bed

000 TEeSr'ssy TE£SL'asy 000 000 000 000 TEESLSSY ijero] Hoday

000 IE'E5L'55F TE €SG5 000 000 000 000 TEESL95Y SISEM PIOS - OTT

Sulpuz jemidy  aouejeg Suipu3  scuejeg Suipug  sawIpgen s1955Y sasuadxy sanuanay Soueteg ysed punyg

- palRINYe) enoy paiepnae) afuey) 19N 28uey) 1eN Suuuigag

SZ0Z/1E/10 - ST0Z/T0/T0 :abuey ajeq veevane
AL STIV4

Adewiuing
Hoday siainseal]

aN ‘A3D s||Bd 40 AUD



JK Energy Consulting, LLC

January 15, 2025

Mr. Anthony Nussbaum
City Administrator

City of Falis City

2307 Barada Street
Falls City, NE 68355

RE: 2025 Cost of Service and Rate Design Study
Dear Anthony:

JK Energy Consulting, LLC (JKEC) is pleased to submit this letter agreement to prepare
a Cost of Service and Rate Design Study for the City of Falls City (City) and its electric,
natural gas, water, and wastewater utilities (Utilities). This letter agreement is in reply to
our discussion in late December and includes the scope of services, relevant experience,
fee proposal, and proposed schedule.

JKEC is a Nebraska limited liability corporation formed in 2008 by John A. Krajewski. Mr.
Krajewski is a professional engineer licensed to practice in the State of Nebraska. The
mission of JKEC is to provide independent, objective advice to consumers and producers
of energy. Since 2009, JKEC has served more than 105 clients in eight states.

Familiarity with Falls City

Through his utility and consulting background, Mr. Krajewski is familiar with the rates
charged by the electric utility’'s wholesale power suppliers. JKEC has prepared cost of
service studies for the City's four utilities (electric, natural gas, water, and wastewater)
five times over the last 15 years. In 2011, JKEC evaluated the City’s existing power
supply arrangements. Mr. Krajewski has also prepared the Integrated Resource Plan for
Falls City on five different occasions, most recently in 2022.

Proposed Scope of Services

The following tasks will be completed for each of the Utilities using methodologies and
guidelines that are generally accepted within the industry for the particular utility. The
proposed approach will be to collect data for all four Utilities at the initial data collection
meeting.

John A. Krajewski, P.E.

74408 Road 433

Smithfield, Nebraska 48976
402-440-0227
jk@jkenergyconsuliing.com
www.jkenergyconsulting.com



Mr. Anthony Nussbaum
January 15, 2025
Page 2

Task 1: Data Collection. This task involves collecting retail usage, operating expense,
purchased power, and other data necessary to complete the cost of service analysis. A
data request will be prepared and submitted to the Utility. To the extent certain data is
not available, alternatives to the requested data will be identified.

This task includes having an initial meeting with City staff to review the important issues
for each of the Ultilities. Based on previous experience with the City, some of the key
issues for the various Ulilities include:

Electric
¢ Ensuring adequate revenue to cover operating expenses and debt service
¢ Ensuring production cost adjustment factors are correct
e Paying debt service associated with new peaking generation and other capital
improvements
« Ensuring cost recovery of new transmission interconnection

Natural Gas
¢ Ensuring the purchased gas adjustment consistent with wholesale gas costs
« Ensuring adequate revenue for distribution operations and maintenance costs
« Ensuring adequate revenue from transport-only customers, if applicable
¢ Paying for proposed capital improvement projects

Water
¢ Ensuring adequate revenue to cover operating expenses and debt service
¢ Ensuring appropriate seasonal rates to reflect peak day usage
¢ Paying for proposed capital improvement projects

Wastewater
¢ Ensuring adequate revenue to cover operating expenses and debt service
¢« Reviewing need for rates for industrial or process sewage, including high
concentrations of total suspended solids (TSS) or higher biochemical oxidation
demand (BOD)
¢ Paying for proposed capital improvement projects

Task 2: Identify Capital Requirements. This task involves reviewing the City’s capital
improvement program and identifying the cash flow requirements necessary to fund
planned projects. Appropriate funding mechanisms will be evaluated, including funding
from revenue, use of reserves, issuance of debt, or a combination of the above
approaches.

Task 3: Calculate Revenue Requirements and Financial Results. This task invoives
reviewing the projected operating expenses, non-retail revenues, capital requirements
from Task 2, debt service expenses and other elements that make up the projected
revenue requirements. Revenue requirements will be calculated for a “Test Year” and for



Mr. Anthony Nussbaum
January 15, 2025
Page 3

a projected period of four additional years (a total of five years). Projected retail revenues
will be compared to projected expenses to develop projected financial results going
forward. The projected financial results are used to identify necessary rate increases for
future periods. Debt service coverage will be calculated to determine compliance with
bond covenants and cash reserves will be reviewed for adequacy. Projected cash
reserves will be calculated and compared to operating expenses to assess if additional
reserves are necessary.

Task 4: Prepare Cost of Service Analysis. This task involves calculating the cost of
service for each retail rate class, using generally accepted ratemaking principles for
municipal utilities. Principles consistent with guidelines prepared by the American Public
Power Association, the National Association of Regulatory Utilities Commissioners,
American Water Works Association, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, and
others would be followed.

The various expenses incurred by the Utility will be identified and assigned to a function
based on the type of service provided. For example, the electric cost of service will be
allocated to generation, transmission, distribution, and customer service while the water
cost of service will be allocated based on water consumption, peak day and peak hour
usage. An appropriate method for allocating expenses for each function among the
various rate classes will be identified. For example, purchased energy costs may be
allocated based on the energy purchased by each retail class, while customer service
expenses may be allocated based on the weighted number of retail customers. In
general, the approach will be similar to the 2022 rate studies, unless the City would like
alternative approaches evaluated.

The allocated cost of service for each rate class will be compared to the projected
revenues for each rate class to determine the need for future rate changes and provide
guidance for the rate design process.

Task 5: Rate Design. This task involves designing retail rates for each rate class. Rate
design factors include the cost of service resuits as well as other goals established by the
Utility. These goals may include long-term rate stability, competitiveness with neighboring
utilities, financial stability, mitigation of large rate increases, and funding of future capital
projects. A discussion of the relative merits of various rate design approaches will be
developed, with the preferred approach identified. The overriding goal will be to design
rates that meet the standard of being fair, reasonable, and non-discriminatory. JKEC will
meet with Utility staff to review these goals and establish rates that best accomplish the
identified goals.

A rate ordinance that includes rate changes for up to three years (annual changes in
October 2025, October 2026, and October 2027) in the future will he developed in a
manner consistent with recent rate studies. Rate comparisons with neighboring utilities
will be prepared.



Mr. Anthony Nussbaum
January 15, 2025
Page 4

Task 6: Draft Report. This task involves preparing a draft report for review by Utility
staff and the Board of Public Works (BPW). The report will be suitable for review by non-
Utility personnel with tables that summarize the key results of the cost of service analysis.
Updated rate ordinances will be provided that implements the proposed rates.

Task 7. Present Final Report. This task involves presenting the results to a joint
meeting of the BPW and City Council. The report will be suitable for review by the City
Council with tables that summarize the key results of the cost of service analysis.
Updated rate ordinances will be provided that implement the proposed rates. JKEC staff
will present the report and be available to answer any questions.

Deliverables for Each Utility

1. One electronic copy of each draft summary report (summary form of report with
proposed rate ordinance) for staff review.

2. One electronic copy of each final summary report, including proposed rate
ordinances, for a joint meeting of BPW / City Council.

3. Presentation of resuits to the BPW and City Council at a regularly scheduled
meeting.

4. One electronic copy of each final report, including all work papers, in Adobe
Acrobat (.pdf) format.

5. One hard copy of each full final report, including all work papers, any changes
resulting from BPW or City Council action, and implemented rate ordinances.

6. One electronic copy of each proposed rate ordinance in Microsoft Word format.

Fee Proposal

The lump sum fee, including billed time and out-of-pocket expenses, to provide the above-
listed Scope of Services for each utility as follows, based on JKEC being retained to
perform all studies for all four utilities. The total lump sum cost for all four studies is
$22,000.

Electric: $7,000
Natural Gas: $6,000
Water: $4,500

Wastewater: $4,500



Mr. Anthony Nusshaum
January 15, 2025
Page 6

Fees will be invoiced on the following schedule upon completion of the following
milestones:

Upon completion of data request meeting: 10%
Completion of draft reports: 40%
Presentation to joint BPW/City Council Meeting: 40%
Provide final versions of rate studies: 10%

Invoices will be transmitted electronically via email and are due upon receipt. Interest
accrues on unpaid balances after 15 days at a rate of 1% per month.

Schedule / Meetings

The following schedule is based on a notice to proceed on February 1, 2025, and four
site visits. Any delay in issuing the notice to proceed or providing requested data will
result in a similar delay in subsequent milestones. This schedule provides for approval
of rates by the City Council in August 2025, with implementation consistent with the
beginning of Fiscal Year 2026.

February 1: Notice to proceed

February 15: Meet with Ultility staff to collect data and discuss study
pracess (including rate design goals)

May 1: Draft reports complete and sent to Utility staff

May 15: Review draft reports with City and Utility staff

June 15; Present draft reports at a joint meeting of the BPW and
City Council

August 1; Present final results to the City Council (including final
rate ordinances)

August 15: Final version of the studies, along with work papers,
submitted to the City

Cctober 1: Implementation of rate changes, if applicable

The proposed fee includes three site visits. If additional visits are requested, billing will be
based on JKEC's standard billing rate schedule, which is attached to this proposal (see
Attachment 1).






Attachment 1 — JKEC Standard Billing Rate Schedule

The following rate schedule will be used to determine monthly billings unless a fixed fee
or other billing arrangement is specified. The rate schedule will also be used to determine
charges for additional services requested but not included in the agreed-upon Scope of

Services.
Billable ltem
John A. Krajewski, P.E.
Senior Consuitant
Administrative Staff

Mileage

Lodging, meals, other travel

Copies, faxes, postage, phone, other
office overheads

Qutside professional services

Billing Rate
$150.00 per hour

$125.00 per hour
$65.00 per hour

RS standard rate for business use ($0.70
per mile as of January 1, 2025)

Actual cost, without markup

included in hourly billing rate

Actual cost



NONDISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Nondisclosure Agreement (this “Agreement”) is made as of this ___ day of

, 2025 (the “Effective Date™), by and between, Nebraska Rural Generation, LI.C a
Missouri Limited Liability Company (“Company”), and City of Falls City, Nebraska_, a Municipal
Corporation (“Recipient”). Company and Recipient may be referred to herein
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.

WHEREAS, in connection with a possible transaction between Company and Recipient described
as the development, construction, operation, and potential partnership or investment opportunities related
to a new power generation facility, including but not limited to feasibility studies, resource planning,
infrastructure requirements, and regulatory compliance (the “Purpose”), Recipient desires to review and
evaluate certain information of Company that is non-public, confidential or proprietary in nature.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants, terms, and conditions set out herein, the
Parties agree as follows:

1. Confidential Information. Except as set out in Section 2 below, “Confidential
Information™ means all non-public, confidential, or proprietary information, including, but not limited to,
any trade secrets disclosed before, on or after the Effective Date, disclosed by the Company or its affiliates
to Recipient, its employees, or its agents, representatives, attorneys, accountants, or any other advisors
(collectively, “Representatives™), whether disclosed orally or disclosed or accessed in written, electronic,
or other form or media, and whether or not marked, designated, or otherwise identified as “confidential”,
and all notes, analyses, compilations, reports, data, statistics, summaries, interpretations, and other materials
(the “Notes™) prepared by or for Recipient or its Representatives that contain, are based on, or otherwise
reflect or are derived from, in whole or in part, any of the foregoing.

2. Exclusions from Confidential Information. Except as required by applicable federal,
state, or local law or regulation, the term “Confidential Information” as used in this Agreement shall not
include information that:

(a) at the time of disclosure is, or thereafter becomes, generally available to and known
by the public other than as a result of, directly or indirectly, any violation of this Agreement by
Recipient or any of its Representatives;

() at the time of disclosure is, or thereafter becomes, available to Recipient on a non-
confidential basis from a third-party source, provided that such third party is not and was not
prohibited from disclosing such Confidential Information to Recipient by a legal, fiduciary, or
contractual obligation to the Company; or

(c) was or is independently developed by Recipient, as established by documentary
evidence, without reference to or use of, in whole or in part, any of the Company’s Confidential
Information.

3. Recipient’s Obligations. Recipient shall:
(a) protect and safeguard the confidentiality of all such Confidential Information with

at least the same degree of care as Recipient would protect its own Confidential Information, but
in no event with less than a commercially reasonable degree of care;

OP 34641111



(b not use the Company’s Confidential Information, or permit it to be accessed or
used, for any purpose other than the Purpose or any related transactions between the Partics, or
otherwise in any manner to the Company’s detriment;

(c) not disclose any such Confidential Information to any person or entity, except to
Recipient’s Representatives who: (i} need to know the Confidential Information to assist Recipient,
or act on its behalf, in relation to the Purpose or to exercise its rights under the Agreement; (ii) are
informed by Recipient of the confidential nature of the Confidential Informnation; and (iii) are
subject to confidentiality duties or obligations to Recipient that are no less restrielive than the terms
and conditions of this Agreement; and

(d) be responsible for any breach of this Agreement caused by any of its
Representatives.
4, Additional Confidentiality Obligations. Except as required by applicable federal, state,

or local law or regulation, or otherwise as agreed in writing by the Company, Recipient shall not disclose,
nor permit any of its Representatives to disclose to any person: (a} that the Confidential Information has
been made available to Recipient or its Representatives, or that it has inspected any portion of the
Confidential Information; (b) that discussions or negotiations may be, or are, underway between the Parties
regarding the Confidential Information or the Purpose, including the status thereof; or (c) any terms,
conditions, or other arrangements that are being discussed or negotiated in relation to the Confidential
Information or the Purpose.

5. Required Disclosure. Any disclosure by Recipient or its Representatives of any of the
Company’s Confidential Information under applicable federal, state, or local law, regulation, or a valid
order issued by a court or governmental agency of competent jurisdiction (a “Legal Order”) shall be subject
to the terms of this Section. Before making any such disclosure, Recipient shall provide the Company with:
(a) prompt written notice of such requirement so that the Company may seek, at its sole cost and expense,
a protective order or other remedy; and (b) reasonable assistance, at the Company’s sole cost and expense,
in opposing such disclosure or seeking a protective order or other limitations on disclosure. If, after
providing such notice and assistance as required herein, Recipient remains subject to a Legal Order to
disclose any Confidential Information, Recipient (or its Representatives or other persons to whom such
Legal Order is directed) shall disclose no more than that portion of the Confidential Information which, on
the advice of Recipient’s legal counsel, such Legal Order specifically requires Recipient to disclose and,
on the Company’s request, shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain assurances from the
applicable court or agency that such Confidential Information will be afforded confidential treatment.

0. Return or Destruction of Confidential Information. At any time during or after the term
of this Agreement, at the Company’s written request, Recipient and the Representatives shall promptly
return to the Company all copies, whether in written, electronic, or other form or media, of the Company’s
Confidential Information, or destroy all such copies and certify in writing to the Company that such
Confidential Information has been destroyed. In addition, Recipient shall also destroy all copies of any
Notes created by Recipient or its Representatives and certify in writing to the Company that such copies
have been destroyed.

7. Term and Termination. The term of this Agreement shali commence on the Effective
Date and shall expire three (3) years from the Effective Date.

8. No Representations or Warranties. For purposes of this Agreement, neither the
Company nor any of its Representatives make any representation or warranty, expressed or implied, as to
the accuracy or completeness of the Confidential Information disclosed to Recipient hereunder. For



purposes of this Agreement, neither the Company nor any of its Representatives shall be liable to Recipient
or any of its Representatives relating to or resulting from Recipient’s use of any of the Confidential
Information or any etrors therein or omissions therefrom.

9, No Transfer of Rights, Title, or Interest. The Company retains its entire right, title, and
interest, including all intellectual property rights, in and to all of its Confidential Information. Any
disclosure of such Confidential Information hereunder shall not be construed as an assignment, grant,
option, license, or other transfer of any such right, title, or interest whatsoever to Recipient or any of its
Representatives.

10. No Other Obligation. The Parties agree that neither Party shall be under any legal
obligation of any kind whatsoever, or otherwise be obligated to enter into any business or contractual
relationship, investment, or transaction, by virtue of this Agreement, except for the maitters specifically
agreed to herein. Either Party may at any time, at its sole discretion with or without cause, terminate
discussions and negotiations with the other Party, in connection with the Purpose or otherwise.

11, Remedies. Recipient acknowledges and agrees that money damages might not be a
sufficient remedy for any breach or threatened breach of this Agreement by Recipient or its Representatives.
Therefore, in addition to all other remedies available at law (which the Company does not waive by the
exercise of any rights hereunder), the Company shall be entitled to seek specific performance and injunctive
and other equitable relief as a remedy for any such breach or threatened breach, and Recipient hereby waive
any requirement for the securing or posting of any bond or the showing of actual monetary damages in
connection with such claim.

12. General.

(a) Governing Law; Jurisdiction and Venue, This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Nebraska without giving effect to any
choice or conflict of law provision or rule {whether of the State of Nebraska or any other
jurisdiction) that would cause the application of laws of any jurisdiction other than those of the
State of Nebraska. Any legal suit, action, or proceeding arising out of or related to this Agreement
or the matters contemplated hereunder shall be instituted exclusively in the federal courts of the
United States or the courts of the State of Nebraska in each case located in the County of
Richardson, and each Party irrevocably subinits to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts in any
such suit, action, or proceeding and waives any objection based on improper venue or forum non
conveniens. Service of process, summons, notice, or other document by mail to such Party’s
address set out herein shall be effective service of process for any suif, action, or other proceeding
brought in any such court.

(b) Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire agreement of the
Parties regarding the subject matter contained herein, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous
understandings, agreements, representations, and warranties, both written and oral, regarding such
subject matter. This Agreement may only be amended, modified, or supplemented by an agreeinent
in writing signed by each Party hereto.

() Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, iltegal, or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any
other term or provision of this Agreement or invalidate or render unenforceable such term or
provision in any other jurisdiction.



(d) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same
agreement. A signed copy of this Agreement delivered by faesimile, email, or other means of
electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an original
signed copy of this Agreement.

(e) Assignment. Recipient may not assign any of its rights or delegate any of its
obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the Company. Any purported assignment
or delegation in violation of this Section shall be null and void. No assignment or delegation shall
relieve the assigning or delegating Party of any of its obligations hereunder. This Agreement is for
the sole benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns and nothing
herein, express or implied, is intended to or shall confer on any other person or entity any legal or
equitable right, benefit, or remedy of any nature whatsoever under or by reason of this Agreement.

(f) Waivers. No waiver by the Company of any of the provisions hereof shall be
effective unless explicitly set out in writing and signed by the Company. No waiver by the
Company shall operate or be construed as a waiver in respect of any failure, breach, or default not
expressly identified by such written waiver, whether of a similar or different character, and whether
occurring before or after that waiver. No failure to exercise, or delay in exercising, any right,
remedy, power, or privilege arising from this Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver
thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right, remedy, power, or privilege hereunder
preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, remedy, power, or
privilege.

[Signature page follows]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed and delivered this Agreement as of the date
first written above.

Company:

By:
Name/Title:

Recipient:

CITY OF FALLS CITY, NEBRASKA, A
Municipal Corporation

By:
Name/Title:







2. That upon payment of the fees owed, the lien shall be released.
3. The lien is subordinate to liens filed prior to the recording of the Notice of Lien.

4. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary to perfect

said lien.
Passed and approved this day of March, 2025,
CITY OF FALLS CITY, NEBRASKA
BY:
Mark Harkendorff, Mayor
Attested:

Anthony Nussbaum, City Clerk









3. The lien is subordinate to liens filed prior to the recording of the Notice of Lien.

4. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary to perfect said

lien.
Passed and approved this day of March, 2025.
CITY OF FALLS CITY, NEBRASKA
BY:
Mark Harkendorff, Mayor
Attested:

Anthony Nussbaum, City Clerk









3. The lien is subordinate to liens filed prior to the recording of the Notice of Lien.

4. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary to perfect

said lien.
Passed and approved this day of March, 2025.
CITY OF FALLS CITY, NEBRASKA
BY:
Mark Harkendorff, Mayor
Attested:

Anthony Nussbaum, City Clerk









2. That upon payment of the fees owed, the lien shall be released.
3. The lien is subordinate to liens filed prior to the recording of the Notice of Lien.

4. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary to perfect said

lien.
Passed and approved this day of March, 2025.
CITY OF FALLS CITY, NEBRASKA
BY:
Mark Harkendorff, Mayor
Attested:

Anthony Nussbaum, City Clerk









3. The lien is subordinate to liens filed prior to the recording of the Notice of Lien.

4. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary to perfect said

lien.
Passed and approved this day of March, 2025.
CITY OF FALLS CITY, NEBRASKA
BY:
Mark Harkendorff, Mayor
Attested:

Anthony Nusshaum, City Clerk









3. The lien is subordinate to liens filed prior to the recording of the Notice of Lien.

4. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary to perfect

said lien.
Passed and approved this day of March, 2025.
CITY OF FALLS CITY, NEBRASKA
BY:
Mark Harkendorff, Mayor
Attested:

Anthony Nussbaum, City Clerk









3. The lien is subordinate to liens filed prior to the recording of the Notice of Lien.

4. The City Administrator is hereby authorized to do all acts necessary to perfect said

lien.
Passed and approved this day of March, 2025.
CITY OF FALLS CITY, NEBRASKA
BY:
Mark Harkendorff, Mayor
Attested:

Anthony Nussbaum, City Clerk









